
Argyll and Bute Council
Comhairle Earra-Ghàidheal Agus Bhòid

Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT
Tel: 01546605522 

DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

10 December 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the SUB-COMMITTEE OF THE POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE will be 
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 
2019 at 12:00 PM, or at the conclusion of the Policy and Resources Committee at 10.00am, 
whichever is the later, which you are requested to attend.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director

BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY) 

3. COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2015 - ASSET TRANSFER 
REQUEST - KILMORY WOODLANDS - PART OF KILMORY HOME FARM - 
ASSESSMENT AND RECOMMENDATION (Pages 3 - 56)
Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Commercial Services

Sub-Committee of the Policy and Resources Committee

Councillor Rory Colville Councillor Roderick McCuish
Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) Councillor Len Scoullar
Councillor Sandy Taylor Councillor Richard Trail

Contact: Hazel MacInnes  Tel: 01546 604269

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL     POLICY AND RESOURCES
ASSET TRANSFER SUB COMMITTEE

COMMERCIAL SERVICES 17 DECEMBER 2019   

COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2015 – ASSET TRANSFER 
REQUEST – KILMORY WOODLANDS – PART OF KILMORY HOME FARM – 
ASSESSMENT AND RECOMMENDATION 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Policy and Resources Asset Transfer Sub 
Committee on the recommendation made by the Executive Director with 
responsibility for Commercial Services (in accordance with the recommendation of 
the Asset Transfer Group (ATG)) to refuse the asset transfer (ATR) request 
submitted by Kilmory Woodlands (KW) seeking a 99 year lease of part of Kilmory 
Home Farm for £1 per annum. There is a presumption of agreement to an ATR, 
unless there are reasonable grounds for refusal.

1.2 The purpose of the ATR is to enable Kilmory Woodlands to provide sports facilities 
at Kilmory Woodlands including a rugby, pitch, running track, shooting targets and 
BMX tracks.

1.3 Where the Executive Director with responsibility for Commercial Services (following 
the recommendation of the ATG) recommends that an ATR be refused, the final 
decision on that ATR shall be determined by the Policy and Resources Asset 
Transfer Sub Committee comprising 6 members to be chaired by the Vice Chair of 
the Policy and Resources Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

1.4 The Policy and Resources Asset Transfer Sub-Committee refuses the ATR 
submitted by Kilmory Woodlands seeking a 99 year lease of part of Kilmory Home 
Farm for £1 per annum (in accordance with the recommendation of the Executive 
Director with responsibility for Commercial Services and the ATG).

      

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL     POLICY AND RESOURCES
ASSET TRANSFER SUB COMMITTEE

COMMERCIAL SERVICES                          17 DECEMBER 2019    
  

COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2015 – ASSET TRANSFER 
REQUEST – KILMORY WOODLANDS – PART OF KILMORY HOME FARM – 
ASSESSMENT AND RECOMMENDATION

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Policy and Resources Asset Transfer Sub 
Committee on the recommendation made by the Executive Director with 
responsibility for Commercial Services (in accordance with the recommendation of 
the Asset Transfer Group (ATG)) to refuse the asset transfer (ATR) request 
submitted by Kilmory Woodlands (KW) seeking a 99 year lease of part of Kilmory 
Home Farm for £1 per annum. There is a presumption of agreement to an ATR, 
unless there are reasonable grounds for refusal

2.2 The purpose of the ATR is to enable Kilmory Woodlands to provide sports facilities 
at Kilmory Woodlands including a rugby, pitch, running track, shooting targets and 
BMX tracks.

2.3 Where the Executive Director with responsibility for Commercial Services (following 
the recommendation of the ATG) recommends that an ATR be refused, the final 
decision on that ATR shall be determined by the Policy and Resources Asset 
Transfer Sub Committee comprising 6 members to be chaired by the Vice Chair of 
the Policy and Resources Committee.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

3.1 The Policy and Resources Asset Transfer Sub-Committee refuses the ATR 
submitted by Kilmory Woodlands seeking a 99 year lease of part of Kilmory Home 
Farm for £1 per annum (in accordance with the recommendation of the Executive 
Director with responsibility for Commercial Services and the ATG).

4. DETAIL

ASSET TRANSFER REQUEST - KILMORY WOODLANDS – PART OF KILMORY 
HOME FARM

4.1 On 25 March 2019, Kilmory Woodlands (KW) submitted an asset transfer request in 
respect of part of Kilmory Home Farm, Lochgilphead seeking a 99 year lease of the 
land at £1 per annum (a copy of the asset transfer request form is attached as 

Page 4



appendix 1; and a plan of the land to which the ATR relates is attached as appendix 
2).

4.2 The Council have title to the subjects known as Kilmory Home Farm (a plan detailing 
the location of the ATR within Kilmory Home Farm is attached as appendix 3).  It 
should be noted that the area shown in the plan setting out the extent of the land 
subject to the request does not cover the full extent of Council ownership which 
comprises other areas shown in red included in the Kilmory Home Farm title.

4.3 The purpose of the ATR is to provide sports facilities at Kilmory Woodlands 
including a rugby, pitch, running track, shooting targets and BMX tracks.

4.4 On 14 June 2019, the Asset Transfer Group agreed that the request contained the 
relevant information required by the legislation to enable them to validate the request 
and consequently, unless otherwise agreed with the applicant, the Council now 
require to make a decision on the request no later than 6 months following the date 
of validation - namely 14 December 2019.

4.5 As required by the Asset Transfer (Procedure) Regulations 2016 details of a 
validated asset transfer request were published in a Notice online and the Notice 
was displayed at a public place in the vicinity of the land to which the asset transfer 
request relates. One representation was received in respect of the request and the 
considered inter alia during the assessment of the Asset Transfer Request.

VALUATION 

4.6 There is no requirement to obtain a valuation for the purposes of the Act. Best 
Value considerations were assessed as weak in the assessment of the asset 
transfer request and should the request be refused state aid is not a relevant 
consideration. On that basis, the ATG determined that a valuation was not required 
in the circumstances given that the request for a 99 year lease at £1 per annum is 
likely to be significantly less than market value of the asset.

ASSESSMENT OF THE ASSET TRANSFER REQUEST

4.7 The agreed assessment and information documentation was completed and 
returned by key Services within the Council.

4.8 Thereafter, on 14 October 2019, the ATG carried out a final assessment in relation 
to the submitted request utilising the agreed assessment methodology, 
incorporating assessments provided by those key Council Services and having 
regard to the legislation, relevant Guidance and valuation. (A copy of the overall 
assessment document is attached as appendix 4). The ATG determined the 
following:

DISPOSAL OF LAND (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2010

4.9 The ATG appraised and compared the costs, benefits and dis-benefits of the 
proposal and was satisfied that while the disposal was likely to contribute to 
purposes set out in the Regulations in respect of part of the area of the local 
authority and persons resident or present in its area it was not satisfied that the 
request was reasonable and that that consequently:

Page 5



 the Council could not discharge is obligations under the Disposal of Land (Scotland) 
Regulations 2010 in relation to the disposing of land at less than best 
consideration; and

 There were reasonable grounds to refuse the request under the Community 
Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015.

PART 5 OF THE COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) At 2015 

4.10 In assessing the ATR the ATG gave proper consideration to the requirements set 
out in Part 5 of the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 and 
corresponding Scottish Government Guidance for Relevant Authorities and 
determined that:

 there are reasonable grounds for refusing the request; and
 It would recommend that the authority did not agree to the request.

REASONABLE GROUNDS FOR REFUSAL

4.11 The ATG determined that the reasonable grounds for refusal are as follows:

 The request or accompanying documentation was not sufficiently robust to give 
confidence that the plans and benefits will be achieved, it is not clear whether 
anticipated funding sources have been applied for and none have been 
awarded; the request has not adequately identified relevant costs including initial 
investment, ongoing running costs and end of project costs or how the project 
will be funded in the future.

 There is currently no access to the site which is crucial to its development. While 
the group have obtained a letter offering access rights there is no detail of what 
this will entail, or what cost they might incur when trying to establish and use the 
access. Access is some way from the town and entry to the site other than 
through the new Industrial Estate is limited to a private road off the main road or 
through the council car park and gardens; 

 While the asset has been identified surplus to requirements and is zoned for 
community use, it is integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate 
as set out in the Council’s Framework Concept Master Plan 2015. The benefits 
to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by the proposal potentially 
adversely affect and jeopardise the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate. 
As part of that development the Service require to retain rights of way to enable 
the installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in the 
framework plan, and as the plan is revisited and amended as required in relation 
of the layout of the phases, some of the land may be required to be incorporated 
into the development plan; and

 The consideration of the project related benefits, sustainability, equality and best 
value was assessed as weak and 99 year lease would provide the community 
transfer body with security and exclusive right to the land while concerns 
remained about the deliverability of the project. In addition and other 
development of the site or other groups wishing to utilise the site would be 
required to fit within the confines of Kilmory Woodlands aims and objectives.

5. NEXT STEPS

DECISION 

Page 6



5.1 In the event that the Policy and Resources Asset Transfer Sub Committee refuses 
the asset transfer request based on the reasonable grounds for refusal then the 
Council must issue a decision notice which must:

 State the date on which the asset transfer request was made;
 Identify the community transfer body which made the request;
 Identify the land to which the request relates;
 Set out the Council’s decision or agree or refuse the request;
 Set out the Council’s reason for that decision; 
 Contain notification of the right of review, how an application for review may be 

made and the date it must be made.

5.2 Thereafter the Council must:

 publish a copy of the decision notice on a website or by other electronic means; 
and

 inform every person who made written representations in respect of the asset 
transfer request (and provided an address) of its decision and where a copy of 
the decision notice is available for inspection.

5.3 It should be noted that if the Council refuse an asset transfer request, the community 
transfer body which submitted it may apply to the Council for a review of that decision.

6. CONCLUSION

It is recommended that:

6.1 The Policy and Resources Asset Transfer Sub-Committee refuses the ATR 
submitted by Kilmory Woodlands seeking a 99 year lease of part of Kilmory Home 
Farm for £1 per annum (in accordance with the recommendation of the Executive 
Director with responsibility for Commercial Services and the ATG).

7. IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The implications of the proposal are outlined in the table below.

Table 6.1: Implications 
Policy In line with Council policy relating to the Asset Transfer 

Process
Financial None at present

Legal In line with Statutory requirements of the Community 
Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 and related Regulations

HR None at present
Equalities None at present
Risk None at present
Customer 
Service None at present

Douglas Hendry - Executive Director with responsibility for Commercial Services, 12 
November 2019

Page 7



For further information contact: 

Ross McLaughlin, Head of Commercial Services, 01436 658 914
David Allan, Estates and Property Development Manager, 01436 657 620
Michael Nicol, Solicitor, Legal and Regulatory Services, 01546 604 468

Page 8



1 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2015 

ASSET TRANSFER REQUEST FORM  

IMPORTANT NOTES: 

This  asset transfer request form can be used to make a request to Argyll 
and Bute Council.   

You do not need to use this form to make an asset transfer request but using a 
form will help you to make sure you include all the required information. 

You should read the asset transfer guidance provided by the Scottish 
Government before making a request. We also provide additional guidance 
and notes on our scheme.  

www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/asset-transfer 

We strongly advise you to contact Argyll and Bute Council at the address 

below to discuss your proposals before making an asset transfer request.   

When completed, this form should be sent to  

asset-transfer@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

This is an asset transfer request made under Part 5 of the Community 
Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015. 

Page 9

https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/asset-transfer
mailto:asset-transfer@argyll-bute.gov.uk
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Unknown/transfer_request_guidance_notes_community_final_-11.04.17.pdf
http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0051/00513211.pdf


2 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Section 1: Information about the community transfer body (CTB) making the 
request 

1.1 Name of the CTB making the asset transfer request.   

1.2 CTB address. This should be the registered address, if you have one.  

Postal address: 

Postcode: 

1.3 Contact details. Please provide the name and contact address to which 
correspondence in relation to this asset transfer request should be sent. 

Contact name: 

Job Title/Role: 

Postal address: 

Postcode: 

Email: 

Telephone: 

I agree that correspondence in relation to this asset transfer request may be 
sent by email to the email address given above.  (Please tick to indicate 
agreement) 

You can ask Argyll and Bute Council to stop sending correspondence by email, or change 
the email address, by telling them at any time, as long as 5 working days’ notice is given.   

Page 10



3 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

1.4 Please check the relevant box to confirm the type of CTB and add its official 
number, if it has one. 

Company, and its company number is: 

Scottish Charitable Incorporated Organisation 
(SCIO), and its charity number is:  

Community Benefit Society (BenCom), and its 
registered number is : 

Unincorporated organisation (no number) 

Please attach a copy of the CTB’s constitution, articles of association or 
registered rules 

1.5 Has the organisation been individually designated as a community transfer 
body by the Scottish Ministers? 

No 
Yes 

Please give the title and date of the designation order: 

1.6 Does the organisation fall within a class of bodies which has been designated 
as community transfer bodies by the Scottish Ministers?  

No   
Yes 

If yes what class of bodies does it fall within?  

1.7 When was your organisation established? 

Charity and its charity number is: 

Page 11



4 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

1.8 What does your organisation do? 

 1.9 What is your organisational structure? 

1.10    Who is responsible for running your organisation? 

Name Volunteer/Employee  Role in Organisation Previous Experience 

1.11    How many members does your organisation have? 

1.12   Does your organisation comply with the Equalities Act 2010? 

Yes (If yes, please attach a copy of your policy statement) 
No  

1.13 Does your organisation have a comprehensive Health and Safety Policy? 

Yes (If yes, please attach a copy of your policy statement)  
No  

1.14 Does your organisation have relevant Child Protection/Vulnerable Adults Policies? 

Yes (If yes, please attach a copy of your policy statement) 
No  

Page 12



5 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Section 2: Information about the land and rights requested 

2.1  Please identify the land to which this asset transfer request relates.   
(In law, “land” includes buildings and any other structure on the land, such as a 
bridge, wall or pier.) 

You should provide a street address or grid reference and any name by which the 
land or building is known.  If you have identified the land on Argyll and Bute Council’s 
register of land, please enter the details listed there.   

It may be helpful to provide one or more maps or drawings to show the boundaries of 
the land requested. If you are requesting part of a piece of land, you must attach a 
map and full description of the boundaries of the area to which your request relates.  
If you are requesting part of a building, please make clear what area you require.  A 
drawing may be helpful. 

2.2      Please provide the UPRN (Unique Property Reference Number), if known. 

 This may be found our register of land. 

UPRN: 

Page 13

https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/register-land-and-assets


6 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

SECTION 3: Type of request, payment and conditions 

3.1      Please tick what type of request is being made: 

For lease (under section 79(2)(b)(i)of the Act) – go to section 3B 

For other rights (section 79(2)(b)(ii)of the Act) - go to section 3C 

3A – Request for ownership 

What price are you prepared to pay for the land requested? 

Proposed price: £ 

Please attach a note setting out any other terms and conditions you wish to apply to 
the request. 

3B – Request for lease 

What is the length of lease you are requesting? 

How much rent are you prepared to pay? Please make clear whether this is per year 
or per month. 

Proposed rent: £  per 

Please attach a note setting out any other terms and conditions you wish to be 
included in the lease, or to apply to the request in any other way. 

For ownership (under section 79(2)(a)of the Act) - go to section 3A 
for more details look under section 8 of the Guidance

for more details look under section 8 of the Guidance

for more details look under section 8 of the Guidance

Page 14

www.gov.scot/Resource/0050/00509558.pdf
www.gov.scot/Resource/0050/00509558.pdf
www.gov.scot/Resource/0050/00509558.pdf


7 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

3C – Request for other rights 

What are the rights you are requesting?  

Do you propose to make any payment for these rights?  

Yes 

No 

If yes, how much are you prepared to pay?  Please make clear what period this 
would cover, for example per week, per month, per day. 

Proposed payment:  £  per 

Please attach a note setting out any other terms and conditions you wish to apply to 
the request. 

Page 15



8 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Section 4: Community Proposal 

4.1 Please set out the reasons for making the request and how the land or 
building will be used. 

This should explain the reasons behind the project, the objectives of your project, 
why there is a need for it, any development or changes you plan to make to the land 
or building, and any activities that will take place there.   

Page 16



9 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Benefits of the proposal 

4.2 Please set out the benefits that you consider will arise if the transfer request is 
agreed to. 

This section should explain how the project will benefit your community, and others.  
Please refer to the Scottish Government guidance (Section 13) on how Argyll and 
Bute Council will consider the benefits of a request.   

Page 17

http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0050/00509558.pdf


10 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Restrictions on use of the land 

4.3 If there are any restrictions on the use or development of the land, please 
explain how your project will comply with these.  

Restrictions might include, amongst others, environmental designations such as a 
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSI), heritage designations such as listed building 
status, controls on contaminated land or planning restrictions. If your organisation is 
proposing a change of use of the asset, you should provide details. 

Negative consequences 

4.4 What negative consequences (if any) may occur if your request is agreed to?  
How would you propose to minimise these? 

You should consider any potential negative consequences for the local economy, 
environment, or any group of people, and explain how you could reduce these. 

Page 18



11 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Capacity to deliver 

4.5 Please show how your organisation will be able to manage the project and 
achieve your objectives.  

This could include the skills and experience of members of the organisation, any 
track record of previous projects, whether you intend to use professional advisers, 
etc. 

Page 19



12 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

5: Level and Nature of Support 

5.1 Please provide details of the level and nature of support for the request, from 
your community and, if relevant, from others.  

This could include information on the proportion of your community who are involved 
with the request, how you have engaged with your community beyond the members 
of your organisation and what their response has been. You should also show how 
you have engaged with any other communities that may be affected by your 
proposals.  

Page 20



13 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Section 6: Funding 

6.1 Please outline how you propose to fund the price or rent you are prepared to 
pay for the land, and your proposed use of the land. 

i. You should show your calculations of the costs associated with the transfer
of the land or building and your future use of it, including any
redevelopment, ongoing maintenance and the costs of your activities.

ii. The proposed operating costs and how they would be met.

iii. All proposed income and investment should be identified, including
volunteering and donations.

iv. You should state whether you have been in receipt of a Council grant over
the last five years.

v. If you intend to apply for grants or loans you should demonstrate that your
proposals are eligible for the relevant scheme, according to the guidance
available for applicants.

Page 21



14 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

6.1 (cont) Page 22



15 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Section 7: RISK/SOCIAL IMPACT 

7.1   This section should explain whether any other organisation/business in your 
area will be affected by your operational proposals, how you will monitor the 
benefits of the asset transfer and what barriers or challenges to your project 
succeeding you have identified. 

7.2     All Asset Transfer requests should comply with state aid rules. With reference 
to Scottish Government Guidance please explain why your proposal will not 
breach State Aid Rules. Find out more about State Aid Test here.  

Please refer to the Scottish Government guidance (Section 11.8) for an explanation of 
State Aid Rules and further links. 

Page 23

http://www.gov.scot/Topics/Government/State-Aid
http://www.gov.scot/Topics/Government/State-Aid/About/state-aid-tests
http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0050/00509558.pdf


16 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Section 8: Community Planning Partnership/Single Outcome Agreement 

8.1 Please tell us which Community Planning Partnership (CPP) outcomes you 
would be contributing to. Further information in relation to the Community 
Planning Partnership/Single Outcome Agreement can be found at:  

• https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/council-and-government/community-plan-and-
single-outcome-agreement

CPP outcomes 

Outcome 1: The economy is diverse and 
thriving 

Outcome 2: We have infrastructure that 
supports sustainable growth 

Outcome 3: Education, skills and training 
maximises opportunities for all 

Outcome 4: Children and young people have 
the best possible start 

Outcome 5: People live active, healthier and 
independent lives 

Outcome 6: People live in safer and stronger 
communities 

8.2 Please tell us which Corporate Plan outcomes you would be contributing to. 
Further information in relation to the Corporate Plan 2015 -2017 can be found at: 

• https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/corporate_plan_2015-17_2_-
_on_web_-_approved_council_june_2015.docx#

Making Argyll and Bute a place people 
choose to live 

Supply of affordable housing 

Page 24

https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/council-and-government/community-plan-and-single-outcome-agreement
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/council-and-government/community-plan-and-single-outcome-agreement
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/corporate_plan_2015-17_2_-_on_web_-_approved_council_june_2015.docx
https://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/default/files/corporate_plan_2015-17_2_-_on_web_-_approved_council_june_2015.docx


17 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Investment in the infrastructure of our towns, 
villages and islands 

Communities are empowered to work in 
partnership with the council to meet their local 
needs 

Making Argyll and Bute a place people 
choose to learn 

Provide quality education to young people 

Working in partnership with FE/HIE providers 
and businesses to ensure young people are 
best placed to gain employment or create their 
own business in the future 

Making Argyll and Bute a place people 
choose to work and do business 

Make Argyll and Bute the best and easiest 
place to do business 

Use Council resources and facilities 
innovatively to generate income in order to 
protect and enhance services 

Take advantage of the opportunities improved 
broadband availability brings and continue to 
demand improved mobile phone coverage 

Market Argyll and Bute to encourage 
companies and individuals to relocate to the 
area 

Improve strategic transportation links 

Page 25



18 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Signature 

Two office-bearers (board members, charity trustees or committee members) of the 
community transfer body must sign the form. They must provide their full names and 
home addresses for the purposes of prevention and detection of fraud. 

This form and supporting documents will be made available online for any interested 
person to read and comment on. Personal information will be redacted before the 
form is made available. 

We, the undersigned on behalf of the community transfer body as noted 
at section 1, make an asset transfer request as specified in this form.   

We declare that the information provided in this form and any 
accompanying documents is accurate to the best of our knowledge. 

Name: 

Address: 

Date: 

Position: 

Signature: 

Name : 

Address: 

Date : 

Position: 

Signature: 

Page 26



19 
Asset Transfer Request Form approved March 2017 

Checklist of accompanying documents 

To check that nothing is missed, please list any documents which you are submitting 
to accompany this form. 

Section 1 – you must attach your organisation’s constitution, articles of 
association or registered rules 

Title of document attached: 

Section 2 – any maps, drawings or description of the land requested 

Documents attached: 

Section 3 – note of any terms and conditions that are to apply to the 
request 

Documents attached: 

Section 4 – about your proposals, their benefits, any restrictions on the 
land or potential negative consequences, and your organisation’s 
capacity to deliver 

Documents attached: 

Section 5 – evidence of community support 

Documents attached: 

Section 6 – funding 

Documents attached: 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



O r d n a n c e S u r v e y  © C ro w n C o p y r ig h t 20 18.A ll r ig
h ts re se rv e d .

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ASSET TRANSFER REQUEST - OVERALL ASSESSMENT

DRAFT ONLY NOT FOR RELEASE – NOT FINALISED

The purpose of this document is to evidence the assessment of an Asset Transfer Request (ATR) in 
respect of the asset identified below and in compliance with the Part 5 of the Community 
Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015.

The Asset Transfer Group will review and evaluate the assessments provided by the relevant Council 
Departments and carry out a comparison of the benefits of the proposal against the Council 
alternative. 

CTB Information/Information about the Land and Rights Requested

Name:  Kilmory Woodlands

Address: 50a Union Street, Lochgilphead, PA31 8JS

Contact Details:  Peter Hogbin

Relevant documents attached Y ☒  /   N ☐

Asset: Part of Kilmory Home Farm, Lochgilphead, Kilmory, PA31 8RT bounded on 3 sides by 
forest tracks and the fourth side by the property boundary.

Plan attached:   Y ☒ / N ☐

Title Confirmed   Y ☒ / N ☐

The subjects form part and portion of All and Whole the subjects known as Kilmory Home Farm and 
Others more particularly described in, and shown coloured pink including the red verges and brown 
on the plan annexed and subscribed as relative to, Disposition by The Secretary of State for Scotland 
in favour of Argyll and Bute District Council dated Sixth January and recorded in the General Register 
of Sasines applicable to the County of Argyll on Eighth February both months in the year Nineteen 
Hundred and Seventy Seven. The proposed access to the subjects is not shown on the plan 
submitted with the application.   

Documents located here: Sharepoint link

UPRN: PV08206180001 Land at Kilmory Home Farm

Page 33

https://fios.argyll-bute.gov.uk/sites/assettransfer/atrs/_layouts/15/start.aspx#/ATR%20Asset%20Transfer%20Request/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2Fassettransfer%2Fatrs%2FATR%20Asset%20Transfer%20Request%2FAsset%20Transfer%20Requests%2FKilmory%20Home%20Farm%2Fkey%20documents%2FAssessment&FolderCTID=0x01200007AB173353F6144DAF7
https://argyll-bute.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=4426b461ba6d4e4c8d69937b07218096&find=PV08206180001


2

Ownership ☐

Lease ☒   

Details of Lease: 99 year lease £1 per annum.

Other Rights         Y ☐ /   N   ☒

Details None 

COMMUNITY REQUEST / CURRENT PROPOSED USE

 Set out the reasons for the request and how Land / Building (s) will be used:

Lochgilphead Community Council commissioned Community Enterprise in 2016 to produce an Action 
Plan for Lochgilphead.  The report identified that facilities for young people and children are missing 
in Lochgilphead.  The report listed potential actions should include improving and further developing 
forest trails, cycle paths and signage.

A survey by Mid Argyll Youth Development Services found that there is a shortage of sporting 
facilities in Mid Argyll and additional sports facilities emerged as one of the top priorities among 
young people for improving the quality of life in Mid Argyll.

The Mid Argyll Rugby Football Club does not have a suitable area of ground on which to construct a 
pitch.  It has identified the proposed site would be ideal for the purpose.  It needs the pitch to be up 
to 120m x 70m to comply with SportScotland's recommendations for pitch size.  Mid Argyll RFC 
regularly have around 60 boys & girls from P4 – S3 age groups who train twice a week and playing 
every weekend throughout the season.   At a recent event 170 young players turned out for a game.  
The numbers have grown considerably in the last 3 years by over 300%. We now have five different 
age youth teams.  The number of members would rise significantly if a pitch is made available.    We 
have P4-5 minis. P6-7 Mini’s, Under14 Boys, Under15 Girls and Under16 Boys to provide training 
equipment for and also, five sets of strips to provide.  The aim at the club is to try to promote rugby 
participation, extra-curricular activity, team building, health & wellbeing and fitness education 
throughout all school ages with the hope that this will progress in later life and help to keep Mid 
Argyll RFC active and training in the community.   Our main aim is to re develop our first team which 
hasn’t had the players to run in recent years, but this requires us to grow our grass roots rugby 
schemes. With the development of our rural children in mind we also know that rugby is a sport 
that, no matter where the children go to, educationally or work wise in later life, a club will always 
be looking for new members and players. We are looking to provide a platform for these young 
players to carry on throughout their life and encourage the fitness and health side of the sport.   
With increased coach development, we would like to open sessions up further in the future to 
younger children and children with special needs if possible.  This proposed development would gain 
the full support of the Scottish Rugby Union.

The Mid Argyll Athletics Club does not have a suitable area of ground on which to construct a track.  
It has identified the proposed site would be ideal for the purpose.  It needs the track to occupy 180m 
x 100m to comply with SportScotland's recommendations for track size.   Mid Argyll Athletics Club 
was started in 1984 and currently has around 70 active members. We provide training for athletes 
from age 7 to 18 and facilitate the opportunity to compete at indoor and outdoor athletics events at 

Page 34



3

a local, regional and national level. We are fully affiliated to Scottish Athletics and all of our coaches 
are trained by Scottish Athletics. We do a range of activities included in the three main athletic 
disciplines of running, jumping and throwing.  This proposed development would gain the full 
support of the Scottish Athletics.

 
Mid Argyll Shooting Club does not have a suitable area of ground on which to construct target sports 
facilities. It has identified the proposed site would be ideal for the purpose.   It needs the target 
facility to occupy 75m x 50m to comply with Scottish Target Shooting's recommendations for 
location of the target and changing rooms.   The object of the Club is to provide facilities for and to 
promote participation of the whole community in the sport of target shooting also to encourage skill 
in target shooting by providing instruction and practice in the use and safe handling of air weapons.   
The Cub now wishes to grow capacity through new facilities and bring more people together, both 
young and old through target sports. Kilmory Woodland will help launch the next stage in the Club’s 
development and bring about an off-grid target sports facility. This will not only create a home for 
target sports in Mid Argyll but increase the resilience for the sport.   It will provide a seven-day 
facility. Bringing people together more often and giving opportunity to more people to socialise and 
become active through target sports.  The Club is affiliated to the national governing body, Scottish 
Target Shooting.    Scotland is successful in the world of target sports having Olympic and 
Commonwealth athletes within its shooting team.    The Club has instructors qualified through UK 
national body, the National Small-bore Rifle Association. The Club provides opportunity for its 
members to participate in national leagues and competitions. Through Scottish Target Shooting, the 
Club can access progression pathways leading to participation in international sport.

Forestry Enterprise Scotland is wishing to further develop its BMX tracks in the area and Kilmory 
Woodlands would provide a focus point.

The development of sports facilities will be a major factor in improving health and wellbeing of 
young people.  

We will promote equality and inclusion. Our focus will be to include disabled people in all sports and 
to ensure opportunities are available for women/girls in sport.

This will be a phased development, working with national bodies for sport and the community 
through local grass roots clubs.

Set out current or proposed use of asset:

While the asset has been identified surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Council’s Framework 
Concept Master Plan 2015 (“the Plan”).

Page 35



4

SECTION 1: BENEFITS - ASSESSMENT

1.1 Does the request demonstrate that agreeing to the request be likely to promote or improve 
Economic Development 

Yes    ☐     No     ☐  to some extent ☒  (Assessed as WEAK by Economic Development)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

Economic Development have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to 
this criteria:

The request states:

People living in Lochgilphead will not have to travel outside the area to take part in the 
sporting activities taking place in Kilmory Woodlands

Tourists and visitors to the area will have better facilities available to them.

It will support growth of the local economy

By providing more and better facilities, it will encourage more families to settle in Mid Argyll.

It will reduce the need for teams to travel for suitable pitches to play on and keep 
investment locally

However, it is not possible to substantiate these statements as the asset transfer request provides 
no information to support them.

If yes, would it be to a greater extent than any alternative proposal?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  Not applicable ☐

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Council current / proposed use:

While the asset has been identified as surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Council’s Framework 
Concept Master Plan 2015 (“the Plan”).

The economic development benefits to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by the 
proposal potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising the development of the Kilmory Industrial 
Estate. As part of that development, Economic Development require to retain rights of way in 
relation to the asset to enable the installation of power and water to allow for the development set 
out in the Plan.  It is also anticipated that as the Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation 
to the layout of the phases, some of the land to which the request relates may be required to be 
incorporated within it. 

Page 36



5

In addition, the Plan includes a large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

1.2 Does the request demonstrate that agreeing to the request be likely to promote or improve 
Regeneration 

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  to some extent ☐ (Assessed as POOR by Economic Development)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

Economic Development have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to 
this criteria:

The Asset Transfer Request makes statements that the site will be developed, however there is little 
detail of what this development will be. While, there may be employment during the construction 
phases, the asset transfer request provides no detail or clarity in relation to future employment 
possibilities.  

Additionally, while there is mention of infrastructure development there is only an outline 
impression of what could be developed. 

If yes, would it be to a greater extent than any alternative proposal?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  Not applicable ☐

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Council current / proposed use

While the asset has been identified as surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Plan.

The regeneration benefits to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by the proposal 
potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate. As 
part of that development, Economic Development require to retain rights of way to enable the 
installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in the Plan. It is also 
anticipated that as the Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation to the layout of the 
phases, some of the land to which the asset transfer request relates may be required to be 
incorporated within it.

In addition, the Plan includes a large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

1.3 Does the request demonstrate that agreeing to the request be likely to promote or improve Public 
Health 

Yes    ☒     No     ☐   to some extent ☐ (assessed as MODERATE by SET)

Page 37



6

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation 
to this criteria:

Statements made in sections Sec 4.1, 4.2, 8.1 support increasing the availability of spaces for sport 
and recreation which will in turn lead to increased people’s involvement thereby public health.  
Their focus is on young people.

If yes, would it be to a greater extent than any alternative proposal?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒    Not applicable ☐

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Council current / proposed use

While the asset has been identified as surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Plan.

The public health benefits to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by the proposal 
potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate. As 
part of that development Economic Development require to retain rights of way to enable the 
installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in the Plan. It is anticipated 
that as the Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation to the layout of the phases, some of 
the land to which the asset transfer relates may be required to be incorporated within it. 

In addition, the Plan includes a large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

1.4 Does the request demonstrate that agreeing to the request be likely to promote or improve Social or 
Environmental wellbeing 

Yes    ☒     No     ☐   to some extent ☐  (assessed as MODERATE by SET )

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation 
to this criteria:

Statements made in sections Sec 4.1, 4.2, 8.1  demonstrate  that the project would improve and 
promote Social / Environmental wellbeing particularly in relation to young people.

If yes, would it be to a greater extent than any alternative proposal?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒   Not applicable ☐

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Council current / proposed use

Page 38



7

While the asset has been identified as surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Plan.

The social and environmental wellbeing benefits to be achieved by the request would be 
outweighed by the proposal potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising the development of the 
Kilmory Industrial Estate. As part of that development, Economic Development require to retain 
rights of way to enable the installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in 
the. It is anticipated that as the Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation to the layout of 
the phases, some of the land to which the request relates may be required to be incorporated within 
it.

In addition, the Plan includes a large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

1.5 Does the request demonstrate that the request would be likely to reduce inequalities of outcome 
which result from socio-economic disadvantage 

Yes    ☒     No     ☐    to some extent ☐  (assessed as MODERATE by SET )

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation 
to this criteria:

Statements made in section Sec 4.1, demonstrate that some of the projects would be likely to 
reduce inequalities of outcomes for girls in sport. They give a commitment to promoting equality 
and inclusion mentioning people with disabilities and women/girls particularly.

If yes, would it be to a greater extent than any alternative proposal?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒    Not applicable ☐

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Council current / proposed use

While the asset has been identified as surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Plan.

The reduction of inequalities resulting from socio-economic disadvantage benefits to be achieved by 
the request would be outweighed by the proposal potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising 
the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate. As part of that development Economic 
Development require to retain rights of way to enable the installation of power and water to allow 
for the development set out in the Plan. It is anticipated that as the Plan is revisited and amended as 
required in relation to the layout of the phases, some of the land to which the request relates may 
be required to be incorporated within it. 

Page 39



8

In addition, the Plan includes a large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

1.6 Does the request demonstrate the extent to which the requests ties into CPP, SOA and CP outcomes  

Yes    ☒     No     ☐   to some extent ☐  (assessed as STRONG by SET)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team advised that:

Sec 8.1 and 8.2

The request indicates support for 5 of the 6 CPP outcomes

And 4 Corporate Plan outcomes

1.7 Consider any other benefits which might arise if the request were agreed to and compare with any 
other benefits which might arise if an alternative request, including current use were to be adopted 
in respect of the asset to which the request relates 

(Assessed as MODERATE BY SET)

Request

SET have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this criteria:
Section 4.2

The request states that:

It supports Argyll & Bute Council’s 6 long term outcomes 2 of which state that all our children will be 
more active and have increased opportunities to participate in play, recreation and sport, also that 
people are active and healthier across all dimensions of health and wellbeing.

It will give access to greenspace, nature and other leisure activities to positively enhance lives and 
health.

It focuses investment on a disadvantaged rural area

It enables a wider engagement with sport and exercise

Alternative Request (including current use)

While the asset has been identified as surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Plan.

The CPP SOA outcomes to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by the proposal 
potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate. As 
part of that development, Economic Development require to retain rights of way to enable the 
installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in the Plan. It is anticipated 

Page 40



9

that as the Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation to the layout of the phases, some of 
the land to which the request relates may be required to be incorporated within it.

In addition, the Plan includes large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

1.8     Outline any other negative impact(s) if request agreed to 

Economic Development and the Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and determined 
that :

A 99 year lease would provide the community transfer body with security and exclusive right to the 
land while concerns remained about the deliverability of the project. In addition any other 
development of the site or other groups wishing to utilise the site would be required to fit within the 
confines of Kilmory Woodlands aims and objectives.

Additionally, access to the site is crucial to its development and the group have submitted with their 
request a letter of comfort from MacLeods offering access rights through land owned by them. 
However the request contains no detail of what this will entail or any cost they might incur when 
trying to use the access.

The request provides no detail of how the group will access the asset should those access rights be 
withdrawn or become subject to onerous conditions in the future which the group are unable to 
meet.

1.9 Outline the impact the request’s failure would have 

Yes    ☐     No     ☒    to some extent ☐ (Assessed as POOR by SET)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team assessed the request and have not been able to highlight any examples 
from the request which would outline any impact of the failure of the Project.

There is no reference to issues or consequences should the request be granted therefore, the 
request has not identified the issues and risks to be managed to mitigate potential failure of the 
project.

Section 1 - Assessment

Please rate Section 1 in accordance with the evidence table (page 17) at Section 6 from Poor – Very 
Strong 

MODERATE - The request is neutral in terms of setting out a more positive benefit for the Council 
and Community than the current use by the Council.

Please outline the reasons for this assessment below:

Page 41



10

While the request does set out positive benefits that would arise if it were agreed, the benefits to be 
achieved by the request would be outweighed by the proposal potentially adversely affecting and 
jeopardising the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate set out in the Plan. As part of that 
development, Economic Development require to retain rights of way to enable the installation of 
power and water to allow for the development set out in the Plan; and it is anticipated that as the 
Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation to the layout of the phases, some of the land to 
which the request relates may be required to be incorporated within it. 

In addition, the Plan includes large area of ground which is set aside for community use/ open 
recreation which will be connected via road network, footpaths & cycle routes which may be 
suitable for the purpose to which the request relates.

SECTION 2 - GOVERNANCE - ASSESSMENT

GOVERNANCE

2.1 Does the request demonstrate that the CTB members have the appropriate skills, experience and 
qualifications to deliver the request, or does the body have a plan for engaging people who do? 

Yes    ☐     No     ☐  to some extent ☒ (assessed as MODERATE by SET)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and have highlighted the following examples 
from the request in support of this criteria:

The group have a number of membership organisations backing the proposal sec 4.5, 5.1
The project is supported by 
Lochgilphead Community Council.  
Argyll Green Woodworkers Association.
The Rugby Club
Clubs and other groups
   Argyll & Bute Rugby Development Officer
   Live Argyll
   Mid Argyll Rugby Club
   Mid Argyll Athletics Club
   Mid Argyll Shooting Club
   Mid Argyll Youth Development Services
   Argyll Green Woodworkers

Local businesses
   Macleod Construction Limited
   DA MacDonald

   Kevan Brown Ltd
   Samborek
   MJ Fabrication
   APE Solutions
  John Frier Forestry & Garden Supplies

National organisations
   Police Scotland
   Sports Scotland
   Athletics Scotland
   Scottish RFU
   Scottish Target Shooting

However, the request does not make clear to what extent, if any the above will be engaged by the 
group in relation to their proposal or whether there is a plan in place to ensure this. 

Additionally, the request provides no evidence or assurance that the CTB have an appropriate plan 
for engaging with people with the appropriate skills, experience and qualifications when required to 
deliver the request. 

Page 42



11

Page 43



2.2 Does the request demonstrate that the Community body have suitable governance arrangements 
for the scale of the request?

Yes    ☐     No     ☐   to some extent ☒  (assessed as MODERATE by Legal Services)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

Legal Services have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this 
criteria:

Kilmory Woodlands is a company limited by Guarantee and not having a share capital. It is registered 
under the Companies Act (Company Number SC0547407) its governance arrangements are set out in 
the Articles of Association of Kilmory Woodlands submitted with the application. The Articles of 
Association meet the requirements of s19 and s80 of the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 
2015. The Directors, who will be responsible for the running of the company, have a range of 
experiences in managing differing commercial and charitable operations. It is provided that expert 
advice will be sourced where needed.  

No information is however provided in respect of the governance arrangements of any other group 
that will require to take forward a part/s of the project to deliver the stated benefits of the 
community proposal. The submission does not therefore provide sufficient evidence that all relevant 
issues have been taken into account in demonstrating that suitable governance arrangements are in 
place for the full scale of the project.

2.3 Where relevant do they have a succession plan in place for recruiting Board Members /Trustees in 
the future?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  to some extent ☐    (assessed as POOR by SET)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

SET have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this criteria:

The organisation has been newly set up and has provided no information on succession planning.

2.5      Does the request demonstrate compliance with state aid rules? 

Yes    ☐     No     ☐  Not applicable ☒ (assessed as weak by Legal Services)

If no, set out evidence below:

Legal Services have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this 
criteria: 

It is provided only that ‘De Minimis aid rules will apply’ no robust information has been provided or 
assessed. It considered by Legal Services that the rent of £1 per annum offered will be less than the 
marked value of the asset. The disposal, if it were agreed to, would accordingly be less than market 
value and as such may constitute state aid, if it provides an economic advantage to a trading entity. 

Page 44



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

A valuation will require to be obtained to determine the market value of the asset for State Aid 
assessment.

Governance - Assessment

Please rate Section 2 – Governance in accordance with the evidence table (page 17) at Section 6 
from Poor – Very Strong 

MODERATE - Governance arrangements are MODERATE 

Please outline the reasons for this assessment below:

The request sets out that the Directors, who will be responsible for the running of the company, 
have a range of experiences in managing differing commercial and charitable operations. 

However, it is provided that expert advice will be sourced where needed and lists a range of 
organisations who it states are backing the plan.  However, the request not provide evidence or 
assurance that there is plan for engaging those organisations or to what extent they wish to or will 
engage with the proposal.

In addition the asset transfer request provides no information on the governance arrangements of 
any other group that will be required to take forward a part/s of the project to deliver the stated 
benefits of the community proposal.  Further, there no information within the asset transfer request 
on succession planning or in relation to compliance with State Aid rules.

SECTION 3 - FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS  

3.1 Has the CTB identified all the relevant costs of the request or facilities including initial investment, 
ongoing running costs and end of project costs?

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  Not applicable ☐ (Assessed as POOR by Strategic Finance)

Outline Relevant Evidence Below: 

Strategic Finance have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this 
criteria:

The Asset Transfer request suggests that the costs associated with the transfer of the land and 
future use of it would be in the region of £1m. 

 This is an estimate and there is no breakdown of this figure.  There is a note of a meeting held on 25 
March 2019 that conflicts with amount, it says that the “project to develop the ground would be a 
10 year project that might cost up to £10m”.  These are two quite different estimates. It further 
suggests that the operating costs would be covered by levying a service charge on the participating 
clubs, there is no breakdown of either the estimated operating costs or estimated income from the 
clubs.  It further notes that the various clubs will source their own funding required for the 
development of facilities, this could be problematic if sharing facilities. 

Page 45



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

2.8 Has the CBT identified appropriate and realistic sources of funding? 

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  Not applicable ☐ (Assessed as POOR by Strategic Finance and POOR by SET)

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Strategic Finance have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this 
criteria

Potential sources of funding have been identified for the four themes, Kilmory Woodlands, Mid 
Argyll Rugby Club, Mid Argyll Shooting Club and Community Woodland.  It is unclear as to the 
ambition of funds requested and there is no mention of raising money if there is matched funding 
requirements. 

SET have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this criteria.  While 
Sec 6.1 of  the asset transfer request provides some ball park costings  there is no detail in relation 
to the methodology used to arrive at those figures 

Additionally, while potential running costs are mentioned in the request, it provides no detail of 
what they might entail or how they would be funded other than passed on to users.

On the basis of the above, the asset transfer request does not provide evidence or assurance that 
the CTB has identified all the relevant costs of the request or facilities including initial investment, 
ongoing running costs or end of project costs.

3.2 Where relevant have they identified how the request will be funded in the longer term?  

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  Not applicable ☐ (assessed as POOR by Strategic Finance)

Outline Relevant Evidence Below:

Strategic Finance have stated the following in support of this assessment:

In terms of development of the land, it has been assumed that capital costs will be available from 
grants, trusts, National Lottery and others.  Once operational, it suggests that the operating costs 
would be covered by levying a service charge on the participating clubs, there is no breakdown of 
either the estimated operating costs or estimated income from the clubs.  

On the basis of the above the asset transfer request does not provide evidence or assurance that the 
CTB has identified all the relevant costs of the request or facilities including initial investment, 
ongoing running costs and end of project costs.

3.3 Set out value to the Council in existing/proposed use  

Assessed as POOR by Strategic Finance

Strategic Finance stated the following in support of this assessment:

There are undoubtedly economic benefits with this project but difficult to assess the value to the 
Council.

3.4 Set out feasibility and cost of relocation of services elsewhere  

Page 46



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

Not applicable

3.5 Set out potential revenue savings to the Council arising from transfer  

(Assessed as POOR by Strategic Finance)

No revenue saving identified.

Financial - Assessment

Please rate Section 2 – Financial in accordance with the evidence table (page 17) at Section 6 from 
Poor – Very Strong 

POOR - Financial Arrangements are poor

Please outline the reasons for this assessment below:

Financial arrangements are weak, based on estimates and it is not clear if they are realistic of the 
proposal is sustainable. It is not clear whether any of anticipated sources have been applied for and 
none have been awarded and may be substantially materially less than set out. Additionally, the 
request has not provided evidence or assurance that the relevant costs have been adequately 
identified including initial investment, ongoing running costs and end of project costs or how the 
project will be funded in the future.

SECTION 4 - RELATED PROJECTED BENEFITS - ASSESSMENT

4.1 Do the proposed benefits of the request contribute to achieving the authority’s functions?  

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  Not applicable ☐ (Assessed as WEAK by Economic Development)

How:

Economic Development have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to 
this criteria

The request states at Sec 4.2 and 6.1

People living in Lochgilphead will not have to travel outside the area to take part in the sporting 
activities taking place in Kilmory Woodlands

Tourists and visitors to the area will have better facilities available to them.

It will support growth of the local economy

By providing more and better facilities, it will encourage more families to settle in Mid Argyll.

It will reduce the need for teams to travel for suitable pitches to play on and keep investment locally

However the request does not provide any information to substantiate these assertions and on that 
basis has not demonstrated how the proposed benefits of the request would contribute to achieving 
the authority’s functions. 

Page 47



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

4.2 Do the proposed benefits of the request have an unacceptable impact on the ability of the authority 
to deliver its functions?  

Yes    ☐     No     ☒  to some extent ☐ (Assessed as POOR by Economic Development)

How

Economic Development have assessed the request and determined that there is not enough detailed 
information in the request to make an assessment.

4.3 Are there any obligations / restrictions imposed on the Authority that may prevent, restrict, or effect 
ability to agree to the request? (Matrix 3.3)

Yes    ☒     No     ☐  

Describe obligations Restrictions:

Legal Services advise that the Council requires to secure Best Value in its operations in accordance 
with the Disposal of Land by Local Authorities (Scotland) Regulations 2010. It should be noted that 
best value does not always mean the highest possible price – all authorities have the ability to 
dispose of property at less than marked value where there are wider public benefits to be gained. A 
valuation will require to be obtained to determine the market value of the asset to enable a Best 
Value assessment to be undertaken

Describe how the request intends to comply with any obligations / Restrictions imposed (Matrix 3.4) 

 There is not enough detailed information in the request to make an assessment.

4.4  Does the request demonstrate Community Support for the project, community demand for the 
request and the extent to which the community will be served by the request? (Asset Matrix 3.5/3.6)

Yes    ☐     No     ☐   To some extent ☒ (assessed as weak by SET)

How does the Request demonstrate this:

The Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation 
to this criteria:

The Request indicated support from Allan Wright ABC Rugby Development Officer (presumably now 
Live Argyll) and additionally mentions working with Mid Argyll RFC and Active Schools.

It indicates Mid Argyll Athletics Club have seen the proposal, however the proposal  still  requires to 
gain their full support. Additionally,  while the request  indicates that Mid Argyll shooting club and 
Forestry Enterprise Scotland’s wish to develop BMX tracks it is  not clear if they are party to or 
support the request.

In addition, the Council received one representation from local residents which strongly objected to 
the proposal on a number of grounds specifically:

Page 48



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

- They would be unfairly subjected to noise and light pollution.
- The value of their property would be adversely affected.
- They believe it would have a detrimental affect on their mental health.
- They have concerns for the varied natural habitat, and wild animals, and insect life thriving 

in the area outlined. 

On that basis, while the request indicates that there is some community support for the proposal  
that support is not universal. Additionally, it is not possible is not possible to determine from the 
information provided whether all the groups listed are supportive. Therefore there is no evidence or 
assurance of the community support for the project as stated in the request.

 Section 4 - Assessment

Please rate Section 3 in accordance with the evidence table (page 17) at Section 6 from Poor – Very 
Strong 

WEAK - project related benefits are weak

Please outline the reasons for this assessment below:

While the request sets out that proposed benefits of the request contribute to achieving the 
authority’s functions there is insufficient information provided as to how those will be achieved. 
There is not enough information to assess whether the proposed benefits of the request have an 
unacceptable impact on the ability of the authority to deliver its functions.

In addition, the  Economic Development require to ensure that they retain rights of way for water 
and power to allow the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate and that any development that 
takes place will have no negative impact on the future drainage or operation of the expanded 
industrial estate.

Further, any project related benefits to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by the 
proposal potentially adversely affecting and jeopardising the development of the Kilmory Industrial 
Estate set out in the Plan As part of that development the Service require to retain rights of way to 
enable the installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in the Plan, and as  
the Plan is revisited and amended as required in relation to the layout of the phases, some of the 
land may be required to be incorporated into the within it.

SECTION 5 – SUSTAINABILITY AND EQUALITY – ASSESSMENT

5.1 Outline any evidence of the sustainability of the request (assessed as POOR by SET and Strategic 
Finance)

The Social Enterprise Team and Economic Development have assessed the request and made the 
following comments in relation to this criteria  

The request is for a 99 year lease but little work is shown on how the project will be developed. The 
request suggests the site will be developed over 10 years but the only area they show any work on 
developing is the rugby pitches, but  there is no detailed costing or draft business plan.

Page 49



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

Strategic Finance assessed the request and made the following comments in relation to this criteria: 

This is an ambitious project which is likely to cost a significant sum of money with little analysis of 
the cost.

5.2 Outline the extent to which the request encourages equal opportunities (Assessment Matrix) 
(assessed as MODERATE by SET)

The Social Enterprise Team have assessed the request and made the following comments in relation 
to this criteria  

Sec 4.1
The request states: We will promote equality and inclusion. Our focus will be to include disabled 
people in all sports and to ensure opportunities are available for women/girls in sport. 
They also included an equalities policy as part of their submission.

5.3 Outline the extent to which the request demonstrates robust monitoring / reporting arrangements 
are in place (assessed as MODERATE by SET)

The Social Enterprise Team stated have assessed the request and made the following comments in 
relation to this criteria  

Sec 4.5

Details the experience of the board and refers to advisors they would engage.
The Directors of Kilmory Woodlands bring a wide range of experience and ability in managing 
differing commercial and charitable operations.

Brian MacLennan   Asset Manager, Scottish Canals
Jilly Wilson   Owner of The Square Peg
Graham Love  Manager at the Grab Trust, previous manager of the MacPool
Dorothy Allen  Argyll & Bute Council IT Project Manager
Peter Hogbin   Former tenant farmer.  Peter, with others, also set up and was Company Secretary to 
the Ardrishaig Community Trust 2008-2012

The company will retain professional advisors to assist with all stages of the development, including 
architects Grant Murray, land agent Paul Nicol, with business development and financial advice from 
Douglas Westwater at Community Enterprise.

The project is supported by Lochgilphead Community Council.  

The Rugby Club has a number of members who are experienced business managers and tradesmen, 
including Lee Buckley Manager at Kevan Brown Ltd.

Section 5 - Assessment

Please rate Section 4 in accordance with the evidence table (page 17) at Section 6 from Poor – Very 
Strong 

Page 50



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

WEAK – Sustainability and Equality are weak

Please outline the reasons for this assessment below:

There is evidence of the promotion of equality and monitoring /reporting arrangements contained 
within the request however it does not provide any evidence or assurance in relation to the 
sustainability of the project.

SECTION 6 – BEST VALUE – ASSESSMENT

6.1 Outline the extent to which the request demonstrates Best Value in the following (Assessment 
Matrix)

Vision & Leadership (Section 1 – Benefits) 

MODERATE – S1.6 - Request state support for 5 of the 6 CPP outcome and 4 Corporate Plan 
outcomes – however no evidence to support these claims.

Effective Partnerships (Section 1 Benefits and Section 3 – Related Project Benefits) WEAK

WEAK - Section 3.4 – Request indicated support from ABC Rugby Development Officer, however Mid 
Argyll Athletics Club yet to indicate support and unclear whether Mid Argyll shooting club and 
Forestry Enterprise Scotland support the proposal.

Governance and accountability (Section 2 – Governance) 

WEAK – (Section 2)  while the request indicates  that CTB members may have the appropriate skills, 
experience and qualifications to deliver the request and do have an intention to engage people who 
can add additional skills, no information is however provided on how they plan to do so.

In addition the asset transfer request provides no information on the governance arrangements of 
any other group that will be required to take forward a part/s of the project to deliver the stated 
benefits of the community proposal.  Further, there no information within the asset transfer request 
on succession planning or in relation to compliance with State Aid rules.

Use of Resources (Section 1 Benefits and Section 2 – Governance) 

WEAK - 2.7-2.9 – Financial arrangements are weak or unverifiable – sources of funding while 
included are assumptions and none have been secured – failure to secure funding would mean the 
project being withdrawn by the group according to their own business plan

There is no evidence provided as to how the CTBs current and future resources will be used as a 
medium to long term plan.

Performance Management (section 4 – Sustainability and Equality) 

MODERATE – (Section 4.3) - The Directors of Kilmory Woodlands bring a wide range of experience 
and ability in managing differing commercial and charitable operations. The company will retain 
professional advisors to assist with all stages of the development, including architects Grant Murray, 

Page 51



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

land agent Paul Nicol, with business development and financial advice from Douglas Westwater at 
Community Enterprise.

The project is supported by Lochgilphead Community Council.  
The Rugby Club has a number of members who are experienced business managers and tradesmen, 
including Lee Buckley Manager at Kevan Brown Ltd.

Sustainability (Section 4 – Sustainability and Equality)

POOR - It is difficult to provide assurance on the sustainability of the project based on the 
information received.

Equality (Section 1 and Section 4 – Sustainability and Equality)

MODERATE - equalities policy included as part of their submission.

Section 6 - Assessment

Overall Scoring of Best Value

Area Assessed Rating Score Weighting Weighted Score
Vision and Leadership MODERATE 3 14.2851% 0.43
Effective Partnerships WEAK 2 14.2851% 0.29
Governance and Accountability WEAK 2 14.2851% 0.29
Use of Resources WEAK 2 14.2851% 0.29
Performance Management MODERATE 3 14.2851% 0.43
Sustainability POOR 1 14.2851% 0.14
Equality MODERATE 3 14.2851% 0.43
TOTAL 16 100 2.3

Overall Rating

Score/Weighted Score Overall Rating

>4.5 Very Strong

>3.5 and <=4.5 Strong

>2.5 and <=3.5 Moderate

>1.5 and <=2.5 Weak

<=1.5 Poor

Total Weighted Score:  2.3

WEAK

Page 52



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

SECTION 6 – OVERALL ASSESSMENT

Evidence Overview
Very Strong 1. The request strongly sets out a more positive benefit for the Council 

and Community than the current of proposed use by the Council.
2. Governance and financial arrangements are strong and sustainable.
3. Related projected benefits are very robust and demonstrate value for 

money: suitability, effectiveness, prudence, quality, value, and the 
avoidance of error and other waste.

4. Robust demonstration of sustainability equality and Performance 
Management

5. Best Value characteristics are evidenced and contained throughout the 
overall approach

Strong 1. The request provides evidence of a more positive benefit for the 
Council and Community than the current of proposed use by the 
Council.

2. Governance and financial arrangements are sound and sustainable.
3. Related projected benefits are demonstrated well and represent value 

for money
4. Demonstration of sustainability and performance management are in 

evidence and promotion of equalities is demonstrated well
5. Best Value characteristics are in evidence in the request. 

Moderate 1. The request is neutral in terms of setting out a more positive benefit 
for the Council and Community than the current of proposed use by 
the Council.

2. Governance and financial arraignments are in place and acceptable
3. Related projected benefits are acceptable and could lead to value for 

money
4. Some evidence of sustainability,  equality and performance 

management is demonstrated
5. Best Value characteristics have been considered in the request

Weak 1. The Request does not set out a more positive benefit for the Council 
and Community than the current of proposed use by the Council.

2. Governance and financial arrangements are weak. 
3. Related projected benefits are not based on robust information and 

demonstrates questionable value for money.
4. Sustainability and Performance Management are not well 

demonstrated and promotion of equality is not well demonstrated
5. Best Value characteristics are not well demonstrated in the request. 

Poor 1. The Request does not set out a more positive benefit for the Council 
and Community than the current of proposed use by the Council.

2. Governance and financial arrangements are poor. 
3. Related projected benefits are ill defined and/or unrealistic and do not 

Page 53



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

demonstrate value for money.
4. Little evidence of sustainability, Performance Management or 

promotion of equality is demonstrated
5. There is little evidence of Best Value characteristics in the request. 

OVERALL CONCLUSION

This sets out the conclusions on the request with regard to the information provided in the request 
and the provisions set out in Part 5 Section 82(3) of the Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 
2015.

Please note that the Act requires that the Council assesses each request transparently against a 
specified list of criteria and agrees to the request unless there are reasonable grounds for refusal.

However, the request is capable of being refused when such reasonable grounds exist including 
cases where the benefits of the asset transfer request are judged to be less than the benefits of an 
alternative proposal, where agreeing to the request would restrict the relevant authority‘s ability to 
carry out its functions, or where another obligation on the relevant authority prevents or restricts its 
ability to agree to the request.

(Matrix 6.1-6.5)

6.1. Please assess strength of the Proposal

Overall Scoring of Request

Area Assessed Rating Score Weighting Weighted Score
Section 1 – Benefits MODERATE 3 16.667% 0.50
Section 2 – Governance MODERATE 3 16.667% 0.50
Section 3 – Financial Arrangements POOR 1 16.667% 0.17
Section 4 – Related Project Benefits WEAK 2 16.667% 0.33
Section 5 – Sustainability and Equality WEAK 2 16.667% 0.33
Section 6 – Best Value WEAK 2 16.667% 0.33
TOTAL 13 100 2.16

Overall Rating

Score/Weighted Score Overall Rating

>4.5 Very Strong

>3.5 and <=4.5 Strong

>2.5 and <=3.5 Moderate

>1.5 and <=2.5 Weak

<=1.5 Poor

Page 54



    ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - ASSET TRANSFER ASSESSMENT 

Total Weighted Score:  2.16

Total Weighted Rating: WEAK

6.2. Please identify any State Aid Issues

None Identified

6.3. What is the justification for the price at less than market value?

None Identified

6.4. How does the proposal present Best Value against any current or intended proposal?

Best Value has been assessed as WEAK in Section 5 of the document

6.5. Outline any reasonable grounds for refusal:      

1. The request or accompanying documentation was not sufficiently robust to give confidence that the 
plans and benefits will be achieved, it is not clear whether anticipated funding sources have been 
applied for and none have been awarded; the request has not adequately identified relevant costs 
including initial investment, ongoing running costs and end of project costs or how the project will 
be funded in the future.

2. There is currently no access to the site which is crucial to its development. While the group have 
obtained a letter offering access rights there is no detail of what this will entail or what cost they 
might incur when trying to use the access. Access is some way from the town and entry to the site 
other than through the new Industrial Estate is limited to a private road off the main road or through 
the council car park and garden; 

3. While the asset has been identified surplus to requirements and is zoned for community use, it is 
integral to the development of the Kilmory Industrial Estate as set out in the Council’s Concept 
Framework Master Plan 2015. The benefits to be achieved by the request would be outweighed by 
the proposal potentially adversely affect and jeopardise the development of the Kilmory Industrial 
Estate. As part of that development the Service require to retain rights of way to enable the 
installation of power and water to allow for the development set out in the framework plan, and as 
the plan is revisited and amended as required in relation of the layout of the phases, some of the 
land may be required to be incorporated into the development plan.

4. The consideration of the project related benefits, sustainability, equality and best value within the 
asset transfer request was weak and 99 year lease would provide the community transfer body with 
security and exclusive right to the land while concerns remained about the deliverability of the 
project. In addition any other development of the site or other groups wishing to utilise the site 
would be required to fit within the confines of Kilmory Woodlands aims and objectives.

Date Determined: 14 OCTOBER 2019

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2015 - ASSET TRANSFER REQUEST - KILMORY WOODLANDS - PART OF KILMORY HOME FARM - ASSESSMENT AND RECOMMENDATION
	Appendix 1 - Kilmory Woodlands asset transfer request
	Appendix 2 - Kilmory Home Farm Red line
	Appendix 3 - Area of ATR within KHF
	Appendix 4 - Kilmory Home Farm - ATR - Draft Overall Asessment Document - FINAL  For Issue


	Postal address Postcode: 
	Company and its company number is: SC0547407
	Scottish Charitable Incorporated Organisation SCIO and its charity number is: 
	Community Benefit Society BenCom and its registered number is: 
	NameRow1: Brian MacLennan
	VolunteerEmployeeRow1: Volunteer
	Role in ProjectRow1: Director
	Previous ExperienceRow1: 
	NameRow2: Jillian Wilson
	VolunteerEmployeeRow2: Volunteer
	Role in ProjectRow2: Director
	Previous ExperienceRow2: 
	NameRow3: Graham Love
	VolunteerEmployeeRow3: Volunteer
	Role in ProjectRow3: Director
	Previous ExperienceRow3: 
	NameRow4: Dorothy Allan
	VolunteerEmployeeRow4: Volunteer
	Role in ProjectRow4: Director
	Previous ExperienceRow4: 
	drawing may be helpful: Part of Kilmory Home Farm, Lochgilphead, Kilmory, PA31 8RT bounded on 3 sides by forest tracks and the fourth side by the property boundary.
	UPRN: PV08206180001
	Proposed price: 
	What is the length of lease you are requesting: 99 years
	What are the rights you are requesting: 
	Outcome 1 The economy is diverse and thriving: Keep people localEnhance tourism
	Outcome 2 We have infrastructure that supports sustainable growth: 
	Outcome 3 Education skills and training maximises opportunities for all: Sports training will be increased
	Outcome 4 Children and young people have the best possible start: More opportunities for young people
	Outcome 5 People live active healthier and independent lives: Sports facilities for a diverse range of people.
	Outcome 6 People live in safer and stronger communities: Draw people together as a bigger and better community.
	Making Argyll and Bute a place people choose to live: 
	Supply of affordable housing: 
	Investment in the infrastructure of our towns villages and islands: X
	Communities are empowered to work in partnership with the council to meet their local needs: • We will help our communities to help themselves and will be proactive in making sure that our communities are empowered to work in partnership with the Council to meet their local needs.
	Making Argyll and Bute a place people choose to learn: 
	Provide quality education to young people: X
	Working in partnership with FEHIE providers and businesses to ensure young people are best placed to gain employment or create their own business in the future: 
	Making Argyll and Bute a place people choose to work and do business: 
	Make Argyll and Bute the best and easiest place to do business: 
	Use Council resources and facilities innovatively to generate income in order to protect and enhance services: 
	Take advantage of the opportunities improved broadband availability brings and continue to demand improved mobile phone coverage: 
	Market Argyll and Bute to encourage companies and individuals to relocate to the area: X
	Improve strategic transportation links: 
	Title of document attached: Kilmory Woodlands Articles of Association.pdf
	Documents attached: Kilmory Home Farm Red line 2.pdf
	Documents attached_2: 
	Documents attached_3: 
	Documents attached_4: Lochgilphead Final Report May 16.pdf   Allan Wright-Kilmory Home Farm Letter.pdf  Kilmory Park Access letter.pdf 25th March poster.pdf
	Documents attached_5: 
	CTB Name: Kilmory Woodlands
	Post Code: 
	Contact name: Peter Hogbin
	Contact job title: Company Secretary
	Contact Postal address: 
	Contact post code: 
	Contact email: 
	Contact telephone number: 
	Contact agreement: Yes
	Company: Yes
	SCIO: Off
	ComBen: Off
	Unincorporated: Off
	1: 
	5: No
	6: Yes
	13: Yes
	12: Yes
	14: Yes

	Designation order: 
	what class of bodies does it fall within: Community controlled body
	Date organisation established: 10 October 2016
	What organisation does: Kilmory Woodlands was set up to provide community facilities at Kilmory Woodlands
	Organisation management structure: A membership organisation with a Board of Directors.
	Number of members: 30+
	3: 
	1: Lease

	Rent amount: 1
	Frequency of rent: annum
	3C: Off
	Rights payment: 
	Frequecy rights payment: 
	Reason for making request: Lochgilphead Community Council commissioned Community Enterprise in 2016 to produce an Action Plan for Lochgilphead.  The report identified that facilities for young people and children are missing in Lochgilphead.  The report listed potential actions should include improving and further developing forest trails, cycle paths and signage.A survey by Mid Argyll Youth Development Services found that there is a shortage of sporting facilities in Mid Argyll and additional sports facilities emerged as one of the top priorities among young people for improving the quality of life in Mid Argyll.The Mid Argyll Rugby Football Club does not have a suitable area of ground on which to construct a pitch.  It has identified the proposed site would be ideal for the purpose.  It needs the pitch to be up to 120m x 70m to comply with Sportscotland's recommendations for pitch size.  Mid Argyll RFC regurlarly have around 60 boys & girls from P4 – S3 age groups who train twice a week and playing every weekend throughout the season.   At a recent event 170 young players turned out for a game.  The numbers have grown considerably in the last 3 years by over 300%. We now have five different age youth teams.  The number of members would rise significantly if a pitch is made available.    We have P4-5 mini’s. P6-7 Mini’s, Under14 Boys, Under15 Girls and Under16 Boys to provide training equipment for and also, five sets of strips to provide.  The aim at the club is to try to promote rugby participation, extra-curricular activity, team building, health & wellbeing and fitness education throughout all school ages with the hope that this will progress in later life and help to keep Mid Argyll RFC active and training in the community.   Our main aim is to re develop our first team which hasn’t had the players to run in recent years, but this requires us to grow our grass roots rugby schemes. With the development of our rural children in mind we also know that rugby is a sport that, no matter where the children go to, educationally or work wise in later life, a club will always be looking for new members and players. We are looking to provide a platform for these young players to carry on throughout their life and encourage the fitness and health side of the sport.   With increased coach development, we would like to open sessions up further in the future to younger children and children with special needs if possible.  This proposed development would gain the full support of the Scottish Rugby Union.The Mid Argyll Athletics Club does not have a suitable area of ground on which to construct a track.  It has identified the proposed site would be ideal for the purpose.  It needs the track to occupy 180m x 100m to comply with Sportscotland's recommendations for track size.   Mid Argyll Athletics Club was started in 1984 and currently has around 70 active members. We provide training for athletes from age 7 to 18 and facilitate the opportunity to compete at indoor and outdoor athletics events at a local, regional and national level. We are fully affiliated to Scottish Athletics and all of our coaches are trained by Scottish Athletics. We do a range of activities included in the three main athletic disciplines of running, jumping and throwing.  This proposed development would gain the full support of the Scottish Athletics. Mid Argyll Shooting Club does not have a suitable area of ground on which to construct target sports facilities.  It has identified the proposed site would be ideal for the purpose.   It needs the target facility to occupy 75m x 50m to comply with Scottish Target Shooting's recommendations for location of the target and changing rooms.   The object of the Club is to provide facilities for and to promote participation of the whole community in the sport of target shooting also to encourage skill in target shooting by providing instruction and practice in the use and safe handling of air weapons.   The Cub now wishes to grow capacity through new facilities and bring more people together, both young and old through target sports. Kilmory Woodland will help launch the next stage in the Club’s development and bring about an off-grid target sports facility. This will not only create a home for target sports in Mid Argyll but increase the resilience for the sport.   It will provide a seven-day facility. Bringing people together more often and giving opportunity to more people to socialise and become active through target sports.  The Club is affiliated to the national governing body, Scottish Target Shooting.    Scotland is successful in the world of target sports having Olympic and Commonwealth athletes within its shooting team.    The Club has instructors qualified through UK national body, the National Smallbore Rifle Association. The Club provides opportunity for its members to participate in national leagues and competitions. Through Scottish Target Shooting, the Club can access progression pathways leading to participation in international sport.Forestry Enterprise Scotland is wishing to further develop its BMX tracks in the area and Kilmory Woodlands would provide a focus point.The development of sports facilities will be a major factor in improving health and well being of young people.  We will promote equality and inclusion  Our focus will be to include disabled people in all sports and to ensure opportunities are available for women/girls in sport.This will be a phased development, working with national bodies for sport and the community through local grass roots clubs.
	Benefits that will arise: Mid Argyll Rugby Football Club will be able to stage matches in Lochgilphead.  More members will join the Club. It will enable more girls to take part in the sport and enable a girls' team to be set up.  It will not need to send its members outside the area to use a suitable pitch.The Athletics Club will have a track it needs for competitive events.Rifle shooting and archery will be safely accommodated.People living in Lochgilphead will not have to travel outside the area to take part in the sporting activities taking place in Kilmory Woodlands.Tourists and visitors to the area will have better facilities available to them.It would be run to complement other facilities in the area, particularly those owned and managed by the Argyll & Bute Council.It will support growth of the local economyBy providing more and better facilities, it will encourage more families to settle in Mid Argyll.It will reduce the need for teams to travel for suitable pitches to play on and keep investment locallyIt supports Argyll & Bute Council’s 6 long term outcomes which 2 of which state that all our children will be more active and have increased opportunities to participate in play, recreation and sport, also that people are active and healthier across all dimensions of health and wellbeing.   The Action Plan for Lochgilphead recognised that there is opportunity for community groups to create more sport and leisure initiatives for children and young people and that Lochgilphead is well placed to further develop outdoor activities. It will give access to greenspace, nature and other leisure activities to positively enhance lives and health.It focuses investment on a disadvantaged rural areaIt enables a wider engagement with sport and exercise
	Restriction on use: The proposed site is agricultural grazing land.  It is marked as a potential development area in the Local Plan 2015 and would require planning consent to change to the use proposed for community activities.
	Negative consequences: Residents in Mid Argyll have been invited to a public meeting where any concerns raised have been examined and solutions sought.  Daniel Griffiths lives at Dunmore Cottage, Kilmory.  He was satisfied that the access to his house would not be adversely affected. He raised the issue of possible light pollution if flood lighting is installed. He asked for consideration to be given to the wildlife in the proximity of the proposed site.                                          Argyll & Bute CouncilThere are no known negative issues so long as access is provided across Kilmory Park industrial estate.   Macleod Construction Limited have given an assurance that access across Kilmory Park will be provided.SchoolBy working with the School authorities and with Live Argyll, it should be possible to work in a collaborative manner avoiding any negative impact on the facilities that currently exist at the High School campus.A83 road usersThere would be a small increase in traffic coming and going from the site but it would typically be on days of the week and times of the day when use of the A83 is low anyway.  Consideration would need to be given to safety for exiting traffic at the end of an event at which there was a large number of visiting competitors
	Capacity to deliver: The Directors of Kilmory Woodlands bring a wide range of experience and ability in managing differing commercial and charitable operations.Brian MacLennan   Asset Manager, Scottish CanalsJilly Wilson   Owner of The Square PegGraham Love  Manager at the Grab Trust, previous manager of the MacPoolDorothy Allen  Argyll & Bute Council IT Project ManagerPeter Hogbin   Former tenant farmer.  Peter, with others, also set up and was Company Secretary to the Ardrishaig Community Trust 2008-2012The company will retain professional advisors to assist with all stages of the development, including architects Grant Murray who have previously worked with MAYDS on the Kilmory Home Farm project, land agent Paul Nicol, with business development and financial advice from Douglas Westwater at Community Enterprise.The project is supported by Lochgilphead Community Council.  The Council Convenor is former forester Andy Buntin.  Another former forester who will be supporting the project is Peter Quelch, Chairman of Argyll Green Woodworkers Association.The Rugby Club has a number of members who are experienced business managers and tradesmen, including Lee Buckley Manager at Kevan Brown Ltd.
	Level of support: Lochgilphead Community Council     Clubs and other groups   Argyll & Bute Rugby Development Officer   Live Argyll   Mid Argyll Rugby Club   Mid Argyll Athletics Club   Mid Argyll Shooting Club   Mid Argyll Youth Development Services   Argyll Green WoodworkersLocal businesses   Macleod Construction Limited   DA MacDonald   Kevan Brown Ltd   Samborek   MJ Fabrication   APE Solutions  John Frier Forestry & Garden SuppliesNational organisations   Police Scotland   Sports Scotland   Athletics Scotland   Scottish RFU   Scottish Target Shooting   Forestry Enterprise ScotlandA letter from Allan Wright, Argyll & Bute Council  Rugby Development Officer states that:As part of the plans include a potential Rugby pitch and training areas this project has gained both my professional and personal interest as well as that of other rugby organisations in the Argyll & Bute area.At present there is a severe lack of Rugby playing and training facilities in the Mid Argyll area. The closest available pitches for a full sized game are located in Campbeltown, Oban or Islay meaning that home matches for Mid Argyll and Lochgilphead based players are far and few between.Mid Argyll RFC are currently working in partnership with myself and other organisations such as Active Schools to promote Rugby in the area. The club has seem a huge rise in training numbers over the past few years and currently cater for Mini Rugby (P3-7), Boys Youth Rugby (S1-S6) and U15 Girls Rugby. The club have a fantastic relationship with the local primary and secondary schools allowing them to attract a large playing base.Despite the positives the club are held back at present with the lack of an available full sized pitch. The club are making the best of a poor situation at the moment by using facilities that are not fit for purpose for a quality game of rugby.The proposed new facilities at Kilmory Home farm would be a huge step forward in the development of rugby in the area while also complimenting the various other users that will benefit from this project. The development would not only support the growth of rugby in the Mid Argyll area but would also aid rugby clubs across the region to grow the game.
	Funding information: Costs associated with the transfer of the land and future use of itThese include legal fees, feasibility study, preparation of an overall masterplan to support site development and phasing, site survey, topographical survey, technical reports and the services of an architect and cost consultant to produce site drawings and support the project to planning stage, the cost of planning applications, provision of car parking, bike sheds, waste management, CCTV, street lighting, fencing, access gates, utilities including power, water, sewage, broadband, site drainage, planting and landscaping.  It is estimated that these costs will be in the region of £1MConsideration will be given to the installation of a biomass district heating system leading to government subsidy and income to support future revenue costs.  Operating costs will include site management, site maintenance, utilities, waste and renewals.    Grass cutting would be the largest outlay.  These costs will be covered by levying a service charge on the participating clubs using the various sports facilities.It is expected that capital costs will be available from grants, trusts, National Lottery with support from sportscotland and from Landfill Tax for the proposed use of Kilmory Woodlands.   Revenue funding will be obtained from Government subsidy (RHI) and service charge/lease arrangements with the various clubs/community organisations involved.It is intended that the various clubs will source their own funding required for development of the facilities they require for their particular sport.   We have received offers of help from volunteers who are members of the clubs that will benefit.  Discounted and pro bono services have been offered by local businesses.No Council grant has been received to date
	Funding continued: 
	Risk - social impact: Access for emergency servicesThe relatively remote location would not present an unreasonable challenge for fire or ambulance services to access the site in an emergency.  The fire engine and ambulance stations are approximately 2 miles from the site and could be reached in less than 10 minutes.   A landing site for a helicopter could be cleared for use in the case of an emergency.Access to the Mid Argyll Community Hospital could be reached by ambulance in less than 10 minutes but slightly longer if the journey is made by private vehicle.
	State Aid Rules: De minimis aid rules will apply.
	Confirmation making a request: Yes
	Declareation: Yes
	1st signature name: Brian MacLennan
	1st signature address: 
	1st signature  date: 25th March 2019
	1st signature  position: Chairman
	1st signature: 
	2nd signature name: Jillian Wilson
	2nd signature address: 
	2nd signature date: 25th March 2019
	2nd signature position: Board member
	2nd signature: 
	Section 1: Yes
	Section 2: Yes
	Section 3: Off
	Section 4: Off
	Section 5: Yes
	Section 6: Off
	Charity: Off
	Charity number: 


